


Shri Manohar Lal Khattar Minister of Housing and Urban Affairs of India,
visited Kochi Water Metro 934 Dec 2024

Hon’ble Chief Justice of India, Bhushan Ramkrishna Gavai
visited Kochi Water Metro 19t Aug 2024
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Chairperson's Message
|

(Dr. A. Jayathilak IAS)

Chairperson, KWML
Chief Secretary,
Government of Kerala

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me great pleasure to welcome you all to the 4™ Annual General

Meeting of your Company and to present the 4" Annual Report. The Board’s
Report, the Audited Annual Financial statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25, the
Statutory Auditor’s Report thereon as well as comments of Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG)
of India on the Supplementary Audit have already been circulated to you and with your permission,
| take them as read.

Kerala's inland water navigation network continues to be a crucial pillar of the state's transportation
infrastructure. A key highlight is the innovative and eco-conscious Water Metro project—India’s first
such initiative—designed entirely indigenously. From the vessels to the terminals equipped with AFC
gates, from the Operations Control Centre (OCC) to the service protocols, every element matches
global standards of urban water transport. The Kochi Water Metro stands as a national flagship
project, exemplifying modern transport solutions and offering a replicable model for other regions.

Your Company started operation in Route No. 1 High Court to Vypin from 26th April, 2023 and Route
No.2 Vyttila to Kakkanad from 27th April 2023. This is followed by operation in High Court-South
Chittoor and South Chittoor — Cheranalloor routes on 14th March 2024 and High Court-Fort Kochi on
21st April 2024. Water Metro has experienced unprecedented rush during the initial weeks of
operation and continued consistent patronage till date. In the first two years of operation, more than
4 million commuters used Water Metro Services making it one of the most favoured urban light
transport system.

Targeting higher patronage and Integration with Metro, Feeder services in the form of air-conditioned
electric buses were introduced in the Kakkanad sector and also in the High Court - M.G Road sector as
circular service, connecting Water Metro and Metro Stations. This became an instant hit and it has
given visible improvement in the patronage and pave the way for further expansion in first mile last
mile connectivity. With all the platforms capable of using similar ticketing system the basic objective
of integration of transport systems took a positive turn.

Your Company has earned several prestigious accolades, including two awards at the Global Maritime
India Summit—for “Best Ferry Services” and “Best Inland Terminals.” It was also honoured as the “Best
City with Green Initiative” at the Urban Mobility India Conference and recognized for the “Most
Innovative Water Transit” at the Urban Infra Awards, among various other distinctions. Furthermore,
the project was featured in the UN-Habitat World Cities Report 2024 under Climate Action Case
Studies and advanced to the final rounds of the ITDP Sustainable Transport Awards, marking its global
relevance. Water Metro Project got special recognition award in UITP Summit in Hamburg, Germany.

Previously, the Water Metro boat secured first place in the internationally acclaimed Gussies Awards



2022 for “Excellence in Electric Boats and Boarding” in the commercial electric boat category—widely
regarded as one of the highest recognitions in electric marine mobility. The International Maritime
Organization (IMO), through its Green Voyage 2050 initiative focused on advancing sustainable marine
technologies, acknowledged the Water Metro as a pioneering project. Notably, your Company’s
proposal to develop a hydrogen fuel cell-powered vessel was shortlisted as a model concept for the
future of clean shipping.

Green Hydrogen as a fuel has been acknowledged by Gol as one of the most promising future fuel for
the country and significant step towards reduction of fossil fuel dependence to save Planet Earth.
Water Metro is intending to develop the concept closely working with Cochin Shipyard, as and when
funds are available.

Water Metro also received wide attention in the National scenario of inland water transport and
considered a benchmark. This resulted in the Central ministry through IWAI taking up feasibility study
at 17 other locations across India, which incidentally been awarded to KMRL.

The Financial Year 2024-25 has been the 4" year of Kochi Water Metro Limited. A snapshot of financial
highlights is available under the Board’s Report.

The commencement of revenue operations marked a significant milestone for your Company, bringing
with it numerous achievements that reflect widespread public acceptance and the collaborative
efforts of all involved. These accomplishments stand as a testament to the dedication and support
extended by various arms of the Government of India and the Government of Kerala, KfW, KMRL,
financial institutions, shareholders, as well as the print, broadcast, and social media. On behalf of the
Board, | extend our sincere appreciation to each of you and humbly seek your continued support in
the journey ahead.

Your Company continues to be deeply committed to transforming the public transportation ecosystem
in Kochi. We strive to provide a reliable, safe, and seamless travel experience that plays a vital role in
advancing urban mobility. Achieving this vision calls for the sustained support and collaboration of all
stakeholders, whose continued partnership remains essential and sincerely appreciated.

Sd/-

(Dr. A. Jayathilak IAS)
Chairperson, KWML
Chief Secretary,
Government of Kerala



BOARD’S REPORT 2024-25

Dear Members,

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the Fourth Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company, along with the Audited Financial Statements, Auditor’s Report and comments

of Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon for the financial year ending 31°* March 2025.

1.0 Financial Highlights

A snapshot of the financial result is given below:

(X in lakh)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Gross Income 1375.67* 1133.51*
Operating Expenses 1392.88 1163.25
Profit / (Loss) before Interest and Depreciation (17.21) (29.74)
Finance Charges 0.82 0.23
Gross Profit / (Loss) (18.03) (29.97)
Depreciation 1.19 0.29
Net Profit / (Loss) before Tax (19.22) (30.26)

* Gross income of 2024-25 includes Grant (Viability Gap Fund) X505.76 lakhs (previous year X708.74 lakhs).

1.1 Share Capital and Subordinate debts
The total paid up share capital of KWML as on 315 March 2025 is X4.90 Crore. Your company has received
100% of the approved equity-funding share from the Government of Kerala and from the Kochi Metro

Rail Limited.

2.0 The progress update

DPR for the project was approved in December 2015, and a loan agreement was signed on 17" June 2016
between Kochi Metro Rail Ltd. (KMRL), KfW and Govt of Kerala for the execution of the project. A
consortium of M/s. Aecom, UMTC and Zebec Marine was appointed as General consultant on 2™ June
2017.

Environmental clearance for the project was duly obtained from MoEF, Gol in October 2019 and contracts
for the first lot were awarded immediately thereafter for the construction of Terminals and other
infrastructure, Boats and subsequently the ITMS and dredging.

The Kochi Water Metro was dedicated to the nation by Honourable Prime Minister of India Shri Narendra

Modi at a function organised at Central Stadium, Trivandrum on 25 of April 2023 in the august presence



of Honourable Governor of Kerala Shri Arif Mohamed Khan, Honourable Chief Minister of Kerala Shri
Pinarayi Vijayan and other ministers of Central and State cabinet. The flagging off of the vessel was carried
out at High Court Junction Water Metro Terminal on a follow up function, by Honourable Minister of
Industries, Law and Coir, Shri P. Rajeeve, in the presence of Honourable Mayor of Kochi, Shri M. Anilkumar,
Honourable M.P. of Ernakulam, Shri Hibi Eden, MLAs and other people’s representatives and other

dignitaries.

3.0 Operation and Maintenance

Your company, Kochi Water Metro Limited (KWML) is formed as an SPV with 74% share by GoK and 26%
share by KMRL for the Operation and Maintenance of Water Metro. Preparing for an early revenue
operation, KWML has recruited core manpower in staggered batches for Boat crew and Terminal
controllers for the initial operation. The staff underwent various advanced training programs and mock
trials to make them proficient and competent to handle the modern system. A minimum administrative

structure is in place.

Water Metro started operation in Route No. 1 High Court to Vypin on 26™ April, 2023 and Route No.2
Vyttila to Kakkanad on 27™ April 2023. This is followed by operation in High Court-South Chittoor and
South Chittoor — Cheranalloor routes on 14" March 2024 and High Court-Fort Kochi on 21°t April 2024.
Water Metro has experienced unprecedented rush during the initial weeks of operation and continued
consistent patronage till date. In the first two years of operation, more than 4 million commuters used

Water Metro Services making it one of the most favoured urban light transport system.

3.1 Automatic Fare Collection system

The Automatic Fare Collection System (AFC) of the Kochi Metro Rail Limited is extended to the Water
Metro in PPP mode and AFC gates are installed at Terminals for ticket validations. These are connected to
the central system. Integrated ticketing system are introduced which allows the use of single Card/ ticket

in both Metro and Water Metro as well as other modes of transport.

3.2 Safety Management

The incumbent staff are trained to the Standard Operating Procedures and Various operational
requirements. Boats are provided with latest navigational and safety systems that will cater to the safe
navigation during night as well. The communication system shall enable the Boat crew to communicate
with the Operating Control Centre as well as external agencies such as Port Authorities, Ships / Barges,
Coast guard/ Navy and other agencies as required for safe navigation. The assistance of Work Boat is
available during operation hours for Maintenance/ Rescue or any other emergency situation, that could

be encountered during operation. A disaster management cell functions from the OCC for any



coordination required in case of an unlikely event of distress.
3.3 Customer Surveys and Fare fixing

GoK has issued order fixing the Fare structure with a minimum fare of X20/- and Maximum fare of X40/-
within the routes. Various passes at discounted rates introduced to attract daily commuters for fast
tracking modal shift. KWML had associated with NATPAC for customer surveys to study the initial
response from public. To cope with the higher rush during weekends and holidays, additional services
were introduced in High Court- Fort Kochi sector bringing down the frequency to 10 minutes. A surge
pricing strategy is introduced to combat with the situation and improve the revenue, which is now

applicable during weekends and holidays.
3.4 Targeting higher patronage and Integration with Metro

With Water Metro commencing Revenue Operation, Vyttila will be the first mobility hub in the country
unique with a Metro station, a Major Bus terminal and a Water Metro terminal integrating into a single
Hub. High Court and Ernakulam are two water metro terminals where the Metro Stations are within a
short approach of 800 to 900 meters. Regular Bus Stations at Ernakulam Jetty, Fort Kochi, Vypin and South
Chittoor are integrated with Water Metro Terminals.

Feeder services in the form of air-conditioned electric buses were introduced in the Kakkanad sector and
also in the High Court - M.G Road sector as circular service, connecting Water Metro and Metro Stations.
This became an instant hit and it has given visible improvement in the patronage and pave the way for
further expansion in first mile last mile connectivity. With all the platforms capable of using similar

ticketing system the basic objective of integration of transport systems took a positive turn.
4.0 Standardisation of Charging infrastructure

Standardisation of charging infrastructure is made possible by adapting into EV charging protocol CCS2 in
Water Metro. This has ensured higher safety standards as well as it brought down the cost. The DC Super
Chargers are of the largest capacity so far made in India and made on EV charging standards. This is
another benchmark in itself as it is capable of charging any Boat adapting the standard protocol regardless
of its system voltage.

The superchargers for the Battery system can charge the Boat Batteries within 15 to 20 minutes.
5.0 Awards and Accolades

Your company has received number of awards including two awards in Global Maritime Summit India for
Best Ferry Services and Best Inland Terminals. Also received Best city with Green initiative in Urban
Mobility India Conference, most innovative water transit in Urban Infra Awards among others. The project

was showcased in UN Habitat World City Reports 2024; Climate Action Case studies, made into the final



rounds of ITDP Sustainable Transport Awards among the few.

Water Metro, earlier received 1% place for “Excellence in Electric Boats and Boarding” for the Water metro
boats from Gussies, which is considered internationally the most coveted, for best electric Boat in
commercial sector, 2022.

International Maritime Organisation (IMO) with its program of Green Voyage 2050 identifying the path
breaking projects for technology cooperation, also acknowledged Water Metro. Your company put
forward the concept of Hydrogen fuel cell powered Boat and was short listed as one of the projects looked

up for future of shipping by IMO.

Green Hydrogen as a fuel has been acknowledged by Gol as one of the most promising future fuel for the
country and significant step towards reduction of fossil fuel dependence to save Planet Earth. Water
Metro is intending to develop the concept by closely working with Cochin Shipyard, as and when funds

are available.

Water Metro also received wide attention in the National scenario of inland water transport and
considered a benchmark. This resulted in the Central ministry through IWAI taking up feasibility study at

17 other locations across India, which incidentally been awarded to KMRL.

6.0 Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, the following Directors were appointed in the place of the named Directors
who are retired / superannuated

Directorial changes that occurred up to 31 March, 2025

e Government of Kerala, vide G.O.(Rt) No.134/2024/TRANS dated 3" April 2024, nominated Smt.
Sarada Muraleedharan IAS, Additional Chief Secretary, Planning & Economic Affairs Department,
Government of Kerala, as Director on the Board of KWML, in place of Shri Puneet Kumar IAS, who
ceased to be the Director, consequent upon his transfer and posting as Additional Chief

Secretary — Personnel and Administrative Reforms Department, Government of Kerala.

e Government of Kerala Vide G.O.(Rt) No.356/2024/TRANS, dated 11" September 2024, nominated
Smt. Sarada Muraleedharan IAS, Chief Secretary, as Chairperson on the Board of KWML, on behalf
of Government of Kerala, in place of Dr. Venu V. IAS, who ceased to be the Chairman, consequent

upon his superannuation on 31.08.2024.

e Government of Kerala vide G.0.(Rt) No.357/2024/TRANS, dated 11" September 2024, nominated
Dr. A Jayathilak IAS, Additional Chief Secretary, Finance Department, Government of Kerala, as

Nominee Director on the Board of KWML, on behalf of Government of Kerala, in place of the Shri



Rabindra Kumar Agarwal IAS, who is relieved from the State Cadre for proceeding on Central

Deputation.

e Government of Kerala, vide G.O.(Rt) N0.441/2024/TRANS dated 08" November 2024 nominated
Dr. Rathan U. Kelkar IAS, Secretary Planning & Economic Affairs Department, Government of
Kerala, as Director on the Board of KWML, in place of Smt. Sarada Muraleedharan IAS, owing to

change of office as Chief Secretary, Government of Kerala and Chairperson of KWML.

e Government of Kerala, vide G.O.(Rt)No.78/2025/GAD dated 7" January 2025 granted full
additional charge of Planning & Economic Affairs Department to Dr. A. Jayathilak IAS, Additional
Chief Secretary, Finance Department, Government of Kerala consequent to which Dr. Rathan U.
Kelkar IAS ceased to be the Director of KWML as the position of Secretary, Planning & Economic
Affairs Department is coterminous with the position.

e Smt. Annapoorani S, Nominee Director on behalf of KMRL ceased to a Director of KWML with
effect from 30" September 2024, consequent to resignation from the post of Director (Finance)

of KMRL.

Directorial changes that occurred after 31 March, 2025 but before the date of this report

e Government of Kerala Vide G.O.(Rt) N0.229/2025/TRANS dated 15" May 2025, nominated Dr A.
Jayathilak 1AS, Chief Secretary, Government of Kerala as Chairman on the Board of KWML, on
behalf of Government of Kerala, in place of Smt. Sarada Muraleedharan IAS who ceased to be the

Chairperson, consequent upon her superannuation on 30.04.2025.

e Government of Kerala Vide G.O.(Rt) No0.276/2025/TRANS dated 18.06.2025, nominated Shri K. R.
Jyothilal, Additional Chief Secretary, Finance as Director on the Board of KWML, on behalf of
Government of Kerala, in place of Dr. A. Jayathilak IAS, who has been posted as Chief Secretary,

Government of Kerala.

e Government of Kerala Vide G.O.(Rt) No.276/2025/TRANS dated 18.06.2025 nominated Shri K. Biju
IAS who holds the Additional Charge of Secretary, Transport (Metro) Department, GoK as Director
on the Board of KWML, on behalf of Government of Kerala, in place of Shri Biju Prabhakar IAS who
superannuated on 30.04.2025.

Board placed on record, its appreciation for the services of Shri Puneet Kumar IAS, Shri Rabindra Kumar
Agarwal IAS, Shri Venu V. IAS, Dr. Rathan U. Kelkar IAS, Smt. Annapoorani S., Shri Biju Prabhakar IAS and

Smt. Sarada Muraleedharan IAS during their tenure as Directors.



The office of the following Directors remained unaltered

e  Shri Loknath Behera
e Dr. M.P Ramnavas
e Shri Umesh N.S.K.

Your Company has the following Key Managerial Personnel as on date

e Shri Loknath Behera (Retd. IPS) - Managing Director

7.0 Board Meetings

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board of Directors of your company met four times on 05/06/2024,
12/07/2024, 14/11/2024, and 17/03/2025.

8.0 Dividend

In view of non-availability of distributable profits, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the

year ended 31 March, 2025.

9.0 Transfer to Reserves

Your Directors do not propose any amount to be transferred to the Reserves for the year ended 31°

March, 2025.

10.0 Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments

During the year under Report, your Company has not -
a. given any loan to any person or other body corporate;
b. given any guarantee or provided security in connection with any loan to any other body corporate
or person; and
c. acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body

corporate, as prescribed under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

11.0 Material changes and commitments

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your
Company, which have occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to which the

financial statements relate and the date of the Report.



12.0 Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors other than those which are reportable to the
Central Government

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any frauds to the Board of Directors under

Section 143(12) of the Companies Act 2013, including rules made there under.

13.0 Fixed Deposits
Your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the public under Chapter V of the Companies

Act, 2013.

14.0 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

During the year, there was no foreign exchange earnings. No amount was incurred towards foreign
exchange outgo during the year.

15.0 Details of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Companies
Your Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture and associate company. No Company has

become or ceased to be subsidiary, joint venture and associate company during the year 2024-25.

16.0 Innovations and new practices, Conservation of Energy

With the acquisition of first 19 boats, Water Metro has become the largest fleet of electric boats under
single command anywhere in the world. Concept of Battery operated Water transport in an organised
water transport is for the first time in India. The Boats use advanced Lithium Titanate Batteries (LTO),
the safest and most durable battery, commercially available, which is capable of supercharging in very
short time. Introduction of the Concept of Opportunity charging in water metro reduced the Battery
capacity required, containing both the cost and battery weight which is critical in Boat design, still
ensuring very long life. Batteries are warrantied for 7 years with a life expectancy of about 10 years with
the planned operating strategy. By bringing the EV concept into water transport for the first time in

India, Water Metro became the largest supercharging EV charger network in India.

In a nutshell, water metro is an amalgamation of a series of innovations and achievements, which the
country is witnessing for the very first time. While the world was battling with the COVID Pandemic,

Water Metro was silently striving to innovate and deliver against all odds.

16.1 Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

Strict control of wake wash generation adapted in the Boat design, reduced effect of created waves
during Boat operation in the river banks, protecting it from erosion and safeguarding stability of small
crafts in the channels. Optimised Hull design resulted in a very efficient hull with power requirement cut

down to the tune of 50% comparing to similar traditional designs. This is a staggering 11 MW power
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saving per annum per Boat from initial estimates of power and a very high achievement.
16.2 The steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy

Your company envisages 100% use of renewable energy to power its Boats achieving net zero energy
targets. Terminal roof tops and floating pontoons canopies are designed to receive solar PV installations.
Atotal of 17 MWp PV installations can power the entire energy needs of Water Metro, which would add
to its operational sustainability. Your company is in the process of steps to avail for a land based Solar
PV installation to achieve 100% power requirement from renewables, which make it a true Green

Project.
16.3 The capital investment on energy conservation equipment
On project stage, no additional investment done.

16.4 Technology absorption

16.4.1 Efforts made towards technology absorption

Floating pontoons are fully casted locally with design/ technology adapted from Europe. The Boats are
Make in India by Cochin Shipyard, with tremendous indigenisation of technology. The Chargers are also
designed and Make in India, though the scale of capacities were earlier not available in India. Passenger
Control system is indigenously developed which effectively control the crowd and positively limit the
boarding within the allowable limits. Automatic Boat Location System (ABLS) is also indigenously

developed.

16.4.2 The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import

substitution

An Automatic Boat Location System shall continuously track the Boats which is monitored from the
Operation Control Centre. These are recorded for later system analysis and future references. A
Passenger Control System (PCS) dynamically count and control the number of passengers boarding the
Boat. This is one of the leading features in passenger safety preventing overcrowding of Boats and

probably developed for the first time in the world.

The jetties use concrete floating pontoons for the berthing of Boats making it a disable friendly system.
Persons with motor disability, using a wheel chair can enter the Boat without any external assistance.
This is expected to help the aged passengers as well, who incidentally forms more than 12% of
population, for a barrier free access to Boats. It also expected to improve ridership. It is for the first time
in the country the concrete floating pontoons are made as a standard in public water transport system,
another bench mark in adapting to new technologies. Floating pontoons ultimately save space and limit

land use and reduce infrastructure cost.

"



16.4.3 In case of imported technology (imported during last three years reckoned from the beginning
of financial year)

No direct imports by company.

16.4.4 The details of technology imported/ the year of import/ whether technology fully absorbed/ if
not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof; and the

expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Not applicable.

17.0 Significant and Material orders

No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or any courts or tribunals impacting

the going-concern status of the Company and affecting its operations.
18.0 Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors periodically reviews the Company’s internal policies and procedures relating to
financial reporting to ensure the orderly and efficient identification and mitigation of any frauds or
errors. These internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the accuracy and
completeness of accounting records, and to facilitate the preparation of reliable and timely financial

information in accordance with applicable laws and standards.

19.0 Auditors
19.1 Statutory Auditor

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. Saju & Co., Chartered Accountants, were
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
(C&AG) vide letter No. CA.V/COY/KERALA,KWML(1)/1611 dated 21.09.2024, who shall continue in office
till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.

The Report of the Statutory Auditors, being a part of the Annual Report, has been annexed herewith.

20.0 Related Party Transactions

During the year under review, your Company has not entered into any Related Party Transactions as
mentioned in section 188 and allied Rules of Companies Act, 2013. During the FY 2023-24, your company
has entered into an agreement with Kochi Metro Rail Limited (KMRL), on 4th September 2023, with
regard to resource sharing by KMRL to Kochi Water Metro Limited which shall remain valid until
terminated by the parties. The particulars of the contract/agreement are given in Annexure to the

Board’s Report in from AOC-2.
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21.0 Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In compliance with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors state that:

e In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March, 2025 the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanations relating to
material departures;

e The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of your Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of your
Company for that period;

e The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of your Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

e The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going-concern basis;

e The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and in that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
22.0 Corporate Social Responsibility

With respect to the provisions under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, it may be stated that the
Company is not fulfilling the criteria mentioned there and therefore it is not obliged to spend on CSR.

Accordingly, it is not mandatory to constitute a Board Sub-Committee or frame a policy on CSR.
23.0 Risk Management Framework

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(n) of Companies Act, 2013, the company has established a
robust Risk Management framework to identify, evaluate, monitor and mitigate various risk that may

impact the business operation, financial performance, or reputation of the company.
24.0 Secretarial Standards of ICSI

The Company is complying with the ‘SS-1’ Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors

and ‘SS-2’ Secretarial Standard on General Meetings.
25.0 Annual Return

In terms of the provisions of 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the copy of the Annual Return as
provided under sub section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 in form MGT-7 is placed on

company’s website https:watermetro.co.in/about.
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26.0 Explanation or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse remark or
disclaimer made by auditor

No qualification, reservation or adverse remark received from auditors for the period under review.

27.0 Maintenance of Cost Records

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of

the Act, for any of the services pertains to the Company.

28.0 Other Disclosures — Prevention of Sexual Harassment in the Workplace

The Company has a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at the workplace. An Internal Complaints
Committee to handle all matter w.r.t. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been constituted and all statutory measures are being taken
every year to sensitize and spread awareness amongst all employees.

No case of sexual harassment was reported during the year under review.

Details of Internal Complaints Committee

Name Designation Internal / External
Smt. Renjini R. Head (Finance) Presiding Officer
Smt. Reni Mathew Manager — HR Member & Convenor
Shri Ebin John Manager (Procurement) Member

Smt. P. K. Shiby Founder & Chief Mentor (Spinach India) | External

With an approach to encourage and nurture, and foster a positive leaning workplace environment, the
human Resource function of Kochi Water Metro continues to helps to strike the right balance between

business needs of the KWML and individual aspirations.

29.0 Acknowledgement

The Board express their heartfelt appreciation for all who have contributed and continue to contribute
to KWML’s success.

The Board takes this moment to sincerely thank the State Government, local authorities, the Office of
the C&AG, Statutory Auditors, KfW, KMRL, commercial banks, both print and visual media, contractors,
suppliers, vendors, advisors, consultants, customers, and various stakeholders associated with the

Company for their unwavering support and assistance.
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The Board also extend its gratitude for the dedication and steadfast cooperation of the officers and

other staff members, which has been crucial in achieving the Company's goals.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors,

Sd/- Sd/-
Shri Loknath Behera Dr. M. P. Ramnavas
Managing Director Director
Place: Kochi (DIN: 09406020) (DIN: 09663030)
Date: 30.06.2025 Kochi Water Metro Limited Kochi Water Metro Limited
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FORM AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length
transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

(a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship. N/A

(b) | Nature of contracts or arrangements or transactions. N/A

(c) | Duration of the contracts or arrangements or transactions N/A

(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions N/A
including the value, if any.

(e) | Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or N/A
transactions.

(f) | Date of approval by the Board. N/A

(g) | Amount paid as advances, if any. N/A

(h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed in general N/A
meeting as required under first proviso to Section 188.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

(a)

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship.

Kochi Metro Rail Limited, nature of
relationship is as per clause (viii) of
Section 2(76) of Companies Act,
2013

(b)

Nature of contracts or arrangements or transactions.

Agreement for handholding the
company through initial phase of
operations by sharing of resources
and contracts.

(c)

Duration of the contracts or arrangements or transactions.

Entered into on 4t September
2023 (FY 2023-24) and is valid till
termination by both parties.

(d)

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions
including the value, if any.

Service charge of Rs.10,000 per
month is payable to KMRL for the
shared services

()

Date of approval by the Board.

16" November 2023

(f)

Amount paid as advances, if any.

N/A

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Kochi

Dat

e: 30.06.2025

Sd/-
Shri Loknath Behera
Managing Director
(DIN:09406020)

Kochi Water Metro Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To,

The Members of
KOCHI WATER METRO LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KOCHI WATER METRO LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended, and the Notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Ind AS) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March, 2025, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company's Annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The company's annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of the Auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

17



In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information as and when made available to us and if we conclude that there
is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibility of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub- section 11 of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. Based on verification of books of account of the company and according to information and
explanations given to us, we give in “Annexure B” a report on the directions issued by The
Comptroller and Auditor General of India in terms of sub-section (5) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

3. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, the cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

e. Being a Government Company, Section 164(2) of The Companies Act, 2013 pertaining
to disqualification of directors is not applicable to the company, in pursuance of the
notification no: G.S.R 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in "Annexure C".
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As per notification no. G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 5™ June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions of section. 197 of the Act regarding

remuneration to Director are not applicable to the Company, since it is a Government
Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

Vi.

The Company does not have any pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

Since the Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, the
question of commenting on whether dividend declared or paid is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not arise.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
tally as the accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
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For SAJU & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN 003526S

Sd/-

has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the
accounting software.

CA. JAYSON JACOB MATHEW, M.COM, FCA
Partner, Memb. No. 229234

UDIN
Place
Date

: 25229234BMIMDO4265

: Kochi
:30/06/2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of

our report to the members of Kochi Water Metro Limited of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge

and belief, we state that:

1. In respect of the company’s Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible assets:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(ii)

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(b) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible assets.

As part of our audit, we were informed by the management that the fixed assets of the
Company were physically verified during the year. However, we noted that a detailed
report regarding the physical verification of fixed assets was not provided, except for a
verification certificate.

As the company is not having any immovable properties, reporting under clause 3(i)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

The company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment or Intangible assets
during the year.

Based on the information and explanation furnished to us, no proceedings have been
initiated on the Company under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016) and Rules made there under.

As there is no inventory held by company at any point of time during the year, the
reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the company has not been sanctioned, any point of time of the year,
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of
security of current assets. Hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

3. According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not made any

investments in, provided guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature

of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other

parties covered in the register required under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii), 3 (iii) a, 3 (iii) b, 3 (iii) c, 3 (iii) d, 3 (iii) e and 3 (iii) f of the order
are not applicable to the company.
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In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has not
granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security or made any investments
to which the provision of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iv) of the order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not accepted any deposits from the public in terms of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly paragraph 3 (v) of the order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government of India
has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Act for any of the activities of the company and accordingly paragraph 3 (vi) of the order is not
applicable.

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues
to the appropriate authorities applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at
the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, there is no dispute with the revenue authorities regarding
any duty or tax Payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,
that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(a) The company has not availed any loans from banks or financial institutions. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (ix)(a) of the order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedure, We report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or other lenders.

(c) As the Company has not availed any term loans during the year, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) As the Company has not availed any loans on short term basis during the year, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, We report that
the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, We report that
the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x)(a) of
the order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares / fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence,
the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company was noticed or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation
made to us by the management of the Company, no whistle-blower complaints were
received by the Company during the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi company and hence, reporting under clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Act. Where applicable, the details of such transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

(a) The Company is not required to have internal audit system as required under Section
138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence, the reporting under clause 3(xiv)(a) and (b)
of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the order is not
applicable.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

(b) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not conducted any
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and the Group does not have not more than
one CIC as part of the Group. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(d) is not
applicable to the Company.

The company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 18.19 lakhs in the financial year and Rs. 30.02 lakhs
in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3 (xviii) of the order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and various government
orders and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xx) of the order is not applicable.
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21. Thereporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect
of said clause under this report.

For SAJU & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN 003526S

Sd/-

CA. JAYSON JACOB MATHEW, M.COM, FCA
Partner, Memb. No. 229234

UDIN :25229234BMIMDO0O4265
Place :Kochi
Date :30/06/2025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of
our report to the members of Kochi Water Metro Limited of even date)

Audit Report on the accounts for the year ended 31 March, 2025 as per directions of C&AG under
section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

1. Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions
through IT systems? If yes, the implications of processing of accounting transactions
outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along with the financial implications, if
any, may be stated.

Yes, the company has a system in place to process all accounting transactions through IT
systems. Based on verification carried out by us during the course of audit and based on
information and explanations given to us, we have not come across any instance of
processing of accounting transaction outside IT system having significant implication on
the integrity of accounts and the consequential financial implication.

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/ write off of
debts/ loans/ interest etc., made by a lender to the company due to the company’s liability
to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated. Whether such cases are
properly accounted for? (In case, lender is a Government company, then this direction is
also applicable for statutory auditor of lender company).

There are no cases of restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/ write off of
debts/ loans/ interest etc.

3. Whether funds (grants/ subsidy etc.) received/ receivable for specific schemes from
Central/ State or its agencies were properly accounted for/ utilized as per its term and
conditions? List the cases of deviation.

The company has received funds from the Government of Kerala aggregating to Rs. 725
lakhs during the year. These funds were received vide G.O.(Rt) No. 179/2024/TRANS
dated 17/05/2024, G.O.(Rt) No. 249/2024/TRANS dated 06/07/2024, G.O.(Rt) No.
422/2024/TRANS dated 22/10/2024 and G.O.(Rt) No. 144/2025/TRANS dated
24/03/2025 towards working capital and for meeting operational expenses. Out of
which Rs. 259.90 lakhs was resumed by Sub Treasury Ernakulam vide Order No.
TRY/1573/2025-F2(261367) dated 30/03/2025.
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In our opinion and based on the information and explanations given to us, the funds
received/ receivable for specific schemes from Central/ State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted for in the books of accounts of the company. The
funds received as grant by the company was utilized for meeting its operational
expenses.

For SAJU & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN 003526S

Sd/-

CA. JAYSON JACOB MATHEW, M.COM, FCA
Partner, Memb. No. 229234

UDIN :25229234BMIMDOA4265

Place : Kochi
Date :30/06/2025
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Annexure C to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report to the members of Kochi Water Metro Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kochi Water Metro Limited
(“The Company”) as of in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAlI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence amount the adequacy of the
internal financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend upon on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For SAJU & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN 003526S

Sd/-
CA. JAYSON JACOB MATHEW, M.COM, FCA
Partner, Memb. No. 229234

UDIN :25229234BMIMDO4265
Place : Kochi
Date :30/06/2025
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KOCHI WATER METRO LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH,, 2025

Particulars

ASSETS
(I) Non- Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Other Intangible Assets
(c) Intangible Assets Under Development
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets
(f) Deferred Tax Assets
Total Non - Current Assets (I)
(IT) Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(ii) Other Financial Assets
(b) Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets (II)

Total Assets (I) +(II)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(I) EQUITY

(a) Equity Share capital

(b) Other Equity
Total Equity (I)

LIABILITIES
(IT) Non- Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities
Total Non - Current Liabilities (II)
(III) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables
a)Total Outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises
b)Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than
Micro and Small Enterprises
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities
(b) Other Current Liabilities
(c) Provisions
Total Current Liabilities (III)

Total Equity and Liabilities (I) + (II) + (III)

Material accounting wolicies
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached.
For Saju & Co

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 003526S

UDIN: 25229234BMIMDO4265

Sd/-
Jayson Jacob Mathew
Partner
Membership No: 229234

Place : Kochi
Date :30.06.2025

Note No.

Nele TN o)y

10
11

12
13
14
15

16

17
18
19

1
2-28

Amount (Rs.in Lakhs)

As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024
2.96 242
3.56 0.39
0.00 3.89

30.02 28.29
19.40 10.83
55.94 45.82
4.64 2.08
130.25 71.08
47377 43191
51.54 48.28
6 60.20 5 53.35
716.14 599.17
490.00 490.00
(45.19) (33.05)
444,81 456.95
9.46 8.92
52.88 36.70
0.00 0.00
0.46 5.90
62.80 51.52
0.45 0.97
148.59 74.34
41.26 242
13.72 10.36
451 2,61
208.53 90.70
716.14 599.17

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Loknath Behera Dr.M.P. Ramnavas
Managing Director Director
(DIN:09406020) (DIN:09663030)

Place : Kochi
Date :30.06.2025
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KOCHI WATER METRO LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025
Amount (Rs. In Lakhs )

For the year ended  For the year ended

Farticulars Note No- 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
I Revenue from Operations 20 864.20 418.36
II' Other Income 21 511.47 715.15
III Total Income (I + II) 13 75.67 11 33.51
IV Expenses:
Operating Expenses 22 729.99 570.25
Employee Benefits Expense 23 531.77 528.49
Finance Costs 24 0.82 0.23
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 25 1.19 0.29
Other Expenses 26 131.12 64.51
Total Expenses (IV) 13 94.89 11 63.77
V Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (III - IV) (19.22) (30.26)
VI Tax expense:
(1) Current Tax -
(2) Prior Period Taxes 1.48
(3) Deferred tax (8.56) (7.57)
(4) Deferred Tax adjustment related to prior period in accordance with Ind AS - 79.19
VII Profit/ (Loss) for the period (V - VI) (12.14) (1 01.88)
VIII Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Pre-measurements of post employment benefit obligations 0.00 0.00
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 0.00 0.00
loss
0.00 0.00
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+ VIII) (Comprising (12.14) (1 01.88)
Profit / (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the year)
X Earnings per equity share: (in Rupees) 27
(1) Basic (248) ( 20.79)
(2) Dilutive (248) ( 20.79)
Material accounting policies 1
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 2-28
In terms of our report of even date attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Saju & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 003526S
UDIN: 25229234BMIMDO4265
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Jayson Jacob Mathew Loknath Behera Dr.M.P. Ramnavas
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No: 229234 (DIN:09406020) (DIN:09663030)
Place : Kochi Place : Kochi
Date : 30.06.2025 Date : 30.06.2025
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KOCHI WATER METRO LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2025

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Amount (in Rs. Lakh)

Particul As at 31st March ~ As at 31st March
artieiiars 2025 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 490.00 490.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated Balance at the beginning of the year 490.00 490.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the current year - -
Balance as at the end of the year 490.00 490.00
B. OTHER EQUITY
R d
oy Gt
Particulars P Comprehensive Total
Retained Earnings Income

Balance as at April 1, 2023(Restated) 68.83 - 68.83
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - - -
Balance as at April 1, 2023(Restated) 68.83 - 68.83
Add : Comprehensive income /( Loss) for the year (101.88) - (101.88)
Add: Additions / Adjustments during the year - - -
Less: Transfer to Income during the year - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (33.05) - (33.05)
Balance as at April 1, 2024 (33.05) - (33.05)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - -

(33.05) - (33.05)
Add : Comprehensive income /( Loss) for the year (12.14) - (12.14)
Add: Additions / Adjustments during the year - - -
Less: Transfer to Income during the year - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 (45.19) - (45.19)
In terms of our report attached.
For Saju & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 003526S
UDIN: 25229234BMIMDO4265
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Jayson Jacob Mathew Loknath Behera Dr.M.P. Ramnavas
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No: 229234 (DIN:09406020) (DIN:09663030)

Place : Kochi
Date :30.06.2025
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KOCHI WATER METRO LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

Amount (Rs.in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
L i 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
A. Cash Flow from Operating activities
Net Profit/ (Loss) for the period (12.14) (101.88)
Adjustment for
(Profit) / Loss on sale of flood affected asset ( net) - -
Depreciation and amortization expense 1.19 0.29
Provision for Gratuity 12.37 20.72
Provision for Leave encashment 5.70 9.31
Income from Unwinding of security Deposits (0.98) (0.29)
Unwinding of Interest Expense on Security Deposit 0.82 0.23
Provisions for Expenses 57.67 29.97
Tax Expense (net) (8.56) 71.62
Interest income (4.70) (6.10)
Grant received / receivable from Govt of Kerala (505.76) (708.74)
Operating Profit / (Loss) before working capital changes (454.39) (684.87)
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets
(Increase )/ Decrease in Financial Assets (1.74) (5.18)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other current Assets (5.82) (46.86)
Increase / (Decrease) in current liabilities 4415 (16.01)
Increase / (Decrease) in non- current liabilities 938 2787
Net Cash flow from / ( used in ) Operating activities ( A ) (408.42) (725.05)
B. Cash Flow from Investing activities
Payment to acquire property , plant and equipment including capital (1.01) (647)
advances
Interest income received 3.50 418
Net Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) 2.49 (2.29)
C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Grant received from Govt of Kerala 465.10 594.00
Net Cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) 465.10 594.00
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A) + (B) + (C) 59.17 (133.34)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 71.08 204.42
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 130.25 71.08
Comprising of
Cash on Hand 7.33 2.32
Balance with Banks:
- Current & Sweep-in Accounts 122.92 68.76
Cash at bank 130.25 71.08

In terms of our report of even date attached.

For Saju & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 003526S

UDIN: 25229234BMIMDO0O4265

Sd/-

Jayson Jacob Mathew
Partner

Membership No: 229234

Place : Kochi
Date : 30.06.2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Loknath Behera
Managing Director
(DIN:09406020)

Sd/-
Dr.M.P. Ramnavas
Director
(DIN:09663030)

Place : Kochi
Date : 30.06.2025



NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2025

Corporate Information

Kochi Water Metro Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company” or “KWML”), incorporated under
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 with CIN: U61100KL20215SGC069821, is a Government Company
within the meaning of Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company was incorporated on 14"

July 2021. The financial statements are prepared for the period from 1% April 2024 to 31 March 2025.

The Company is set up as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), for the purpose of Operation and Maintenance
of Integrated Water Metro system (water metro) in the city of Kochi, with Government of Kerala (GoK) and
Kochi Metro Rail Limited (KMRL) as shareholders, with equity participation of 74% & 26% respectively as
per GO (MS) No.26 / 2020 / TRANS dated 23.10.2020. The Company is a public limited company
incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at JLN Stadium Metro Station, 4™ Floor,

Kaloor, Kochi - 682 017.

The Company has commenced the operations of the water metro on 26™ April 2023. The financial
statements for the year ended March 31,2025 are approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the

Company in their meeting held on 30.06.2025.

1. Material accounting policies

1.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other

Accounting Principles generally accepted in India.

1.1.a Basis of Preparation
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis, except

for the following assets and liabilities, which have been measured at fair value amount:

a. financial assets and liabilities and contingent consideration measured at fair value;

b. defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting
standards (‘Ind AS’), including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is

initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
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hitherto in use. The company has generally followed the policy and best practices as prevalent in the

industry.

1.2 Use of estimates and management judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles
of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) requires the management to make some estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities
(including contingent liabilities) and disclosures as at the date of the financial statements and the reported
income and expenses during the year. Some of the estimations require higher degrees of judgment to be
applied than others. Management continuously evaluates all of its estimates and judgments based on
available information and its experience and believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the
financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results may differ from these estimates and the
differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results

are known or materialized.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of
impairment of investments, useful lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets,
provisions and contingent liabilities.

a) Useful lives of property, plant, and equipment

The Company reviews the estimated useful life and residual values of property, plant, and equipment at
the end of each reporting period. Assumptions are also made as to whether an item meets the description
of asset so as to warrant capitalization and which component of the asset may be capitalized. The
reassessment of useful life may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods. The depreciation

/ amortization for future periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

b) Recognition of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.
Significant judgments are involved in determining the elements of deferred tax items. The policy for the

same has been explained under Note 1.20.

c) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding employee benefits as per actuarial valuation) are not

discounted to its present value and are determined, based on best estimate required to settle the
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obligation at the Balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. Contingent Liabilities are disclosed on
the basis of judgment of management / independent experts. A contingent asset is not recognized but

disclosed as a note to the financial statements.

d) Impairment test of non-financial assets
The recoverable amount of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible asset is determined based
on judgment of assumptions of technical experts. Any change in these assumptions may have a material

impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount and could result in impairment.

e) Trade Receivables and Loans & Advances
Provision for doubtful trade receivables / loans & advances is recognized when there is uncertainty of

realisation irrespective of the period of its dues and written off when unrealizability is established.

1.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (X), which is the company’s functional currency.

1.4 Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs,

except when otherwise indicated.

1.5 Revenue Recognition

a) Income from fare collection is recognized on the basis of sale of tickets, sale of trip pass, money value
of actual usage in case of smart cards and other direct fare collection. Amount disclosed as revenue are
net of returns, trade allowances, rebates and discounts.

b) Income from licensing of property /rental income from property is recognized in accordance with terms
and conditions of the contract with the licensee/lessee and is accounted for on accrual basis over the
licensing terms.

c) Revenue from sale of scrap is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, goods and service tax and
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The company recognizes revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity.

d) Interest income is recognized on accrual basis using effective interest rate method.

e) Other incomes are recognized on accrual basis.

38



1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment (except freehold land) are stated at their acquisition cost / historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. The company is adopting the cost model for
determining gross carrying amount.
The cost of fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes net of

recoverable taxes and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use.

1.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that
they are available for use.

Cost of software which is not an integral part of the related hardware acquired for internal use is capitalized

as intangible asset and amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of five years.

1.8 Capital work in Progress (CWIP) and intangible assets under development.
Assets under construction and intangible assets under development as at Balance Sheet date are

shown as Capital Work in Progress (CWIP).

1.9 Impairment of Assets

The carrying values of assets at each Balance Sheet date are reviewed for impairment, if any. If any
indication of such impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated, and impairment
is recognized. The impairment loss recognized is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which an asset is identified as impaired. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less

costs of disposal and value in use.

1.10 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

1.11 Provision for doubtful debts and advance
Provision for doubtful debts/advances is made when there is uncertainty of realisation irrespective of the

period of its dues and written off when unrealizability is established.

1.12 Depreciation and Amortization

(i) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided based on Straight line method as per useful
lives of assets as prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

(i) Residual value of 5% has been retained for all the Fixed Assets, which is in line with the provisions of
the Schedule I1.

(iii) Individual assets costing Rs.5,000/- or less are depreciated / amortized fully in the year of purchase.
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(iv) Intangible assets are amortized on a systematic basis over the best estimate of its useful life, from the
date they are available for use

1.13 Government Grants

Grants from the Government/Non-Government or other authorities towards Revenue are recognised in

the Statement of Profit & Loss under the head — Other Income on accrual basis. Government Grants for

meeting the working capital requirements of water metro system are recognized as income in the

Statement of Profit and Loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended

to compensate and presented within other income in accordance with IND AS 20. Government grant that

becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving

immediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs is recognised in profit or loss of the

period in which it becomes receivable.

1.14 Current versus non-current classification

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are presented based on current/non-current classification in

the manner shown below;

An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

o Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

o Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o Cash or cash equivalents, unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets shall be classified as non-current.

A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
o Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or
oHeld primarily for the purpose of trading, or
oDue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
oThere is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.
All other liabilities shall be treated as non-current.
1.15 Operating cycle
Based on the nature of the operating activities of the company and the normal time between the
acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the company has determined its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-

current.
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1.16 Financial Instruments

a) Initial recognition, measurement and de-recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

All financial assets and liabilities are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs, except
for those financial assets and liabilities which are classified at Fair Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL) at
inception.

Financial assets are de-recognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets
expire or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability

is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expired.

b) Classification and subsequent measurement of Financial Assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, Financial Assets are classified into following categories upon
initial measurement/recognition;

e To be measured at amortized cost and;

e To be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through

Statement of Profit and Loss).

c) Impairment of Financial assets: Impairment loss on trade receivables is recognised using expected credit
loss model, which involves use of a provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical credit loss
experience as permitted under Ind AS 109 and is adjusted for forward looking information. Impairment loss
on investments is recognised when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are recognised based on the difference between the contractual

cashflows and all the expected cash flows.

d) Classification and subsequent measurement of Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using effective interest rate, except for

financial liabilities measured at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.17 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized only when,

a) the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event.

b) itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation.

c) areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date and are not discounted to present value.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in case of,

a) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation.

b) a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.
Contingent liabilities are measured on the basis of judgment of the management / independent
experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current
management estimate. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the
financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the
legal proceedings, Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on our
financial position or profitability. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but

discloses its existence in the financial statements

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity. The Company does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses its existence in the

financial statements where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

1.18 Commitments
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure. Commitments are classified and disclosed
as follows:

a) Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for.

b) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and

relevant in the opinion of management.

The company is not having any contractual Commitments as at balance sheet date.

1.19 Prior period adjustment

Prior period adjustments due to errors, having material impact on the financial affairs of the Company, are
corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for prior periods presented in which the
error occurred or if the error occurred before the earliest period presented, by restating the opening

statement of financial position in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

1.20 Taxation
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Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability
during the year. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax
Tax onincome for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed
in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, and based on the expected outcome of

assessments/appeals.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
reporting date. Deferred Tax Asset is recognized only to the extent it is probable that tax benefits will be
realised in future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

1.21 Employee benefits

Provident Fund and pension scheme: The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive
benefits under provident fund schemes in which both employees and the Company make monthly
contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions are paid to the

Regional Provident Fund Account.

All eligible employees of the company under provident fund schemes are also covered under the provident
fund’s pension scheme. Under the above provident fund’s pension scheme, no contribution is collected
from the employees and is paid from the employer’s contribution.

Gratuity: Provision towards Gratuity as per actuarial valuation is made during the current year.

Privilege Leave: The Company provides privilege leave benefit to the employees, which are encashable.

The related liability is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.
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Insurance: The Company has also taken Medical Insurance Policy for all its eligible employees during the

current year.

1.22 Leases

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. For operating leases, rental

income is recognized on a straight line basis or another systematic basis over the term of the relevant lease

1.23 Segment reporting

The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is developing, running, and maintaining of
water metro system and operates in a single operating segment based on the nature of the services, the
risk and returns, the organization structure and the internal financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the

amounts appearing in the financial statements are related to the Company’s single business segment.

1.24 Cash and Cash equivalents (for the purpose of cash flow statement)

Cash for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprises cash at hand, Government treasury and demand
deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term balances with an original maturity of three months
or more, but less than twelve months from the date of acquisition, highly liquid investments that are readily

convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

1.25 Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Indian Accounting

Standard (Ind AS) — 7 on ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

1.26 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Note 4 : Other Non Current Assets- Financial Assets

Security Deposit -Unsecured and Considered Good (Refer Note no.28.16)

Total

Note 5 : Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Asset (Refer Note no.28.7)
Difference between preliminary expense in books & preliminary expense as per
Income tax
Unabsorbed Losses
Expenses allowed on payment basis

Total

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liability
Difference between book depreciation and tax depreciation
Difference between preliminary expense in books & preliminary expense as per
Income tax

Total
Net Deferred Tax Assets

Note 5.1: Significant components of Deferred Tax charged during the year
Difference between preliminary expense in books & preliminary expense as per Income
tax
Difference between book depreciation and tax depreciation
Unabsorbed Losses
Expenses allowed on payment basis

Total

Note 6 : Trade Receivables [Current] Financial Assets
Unsecured- Considered Good (Refer Note n0.28.9.2)

Total

Note 7 : Cash and Cash equivalents [Current]
Cash on hand
Balance with Banks /Treasury (In current and sweep in accounts)

Note 8 : Other Financial Assets [Current]
UNSECURED,CONSIDERED GOOD, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED
- Grant-GoK Receivable (Refer Note no.28.13)
- Interest Accrued

Total
Note 9 : Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses
Taxation (net of Provisions)
GST Input Tax Receivable
Advances to Vendors
Total
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Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
30.02 28.29
30.02 28.29
Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
0.42 0.83
5.17 0.71
13.93 9.35
19.52 10.89
0.12 0.06
0.12 0.06
19.40 10.83
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
(0.42) (0.47)
(0.06) (0.01)
4.46 (78.69)
458 7.55
8.56 (71.62)
Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
4.64 2.08
4.64 2.08
Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
7.33 2.32
122.92 68.76
130.25 71.08
Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
470.04 429.38
3.73 2.53
473.77 431.91
Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
48.99 32.73
1.05 0.35
0.06 0.15
1.44 15.05
51.54 48.28




Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs.100 each 490 000 490.00 490 000 490.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs.100 each fully paid up 490 000 490.00 490 000 490.00

Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 490 000 490.00 490 000 490.00

Add : Shares issued during the year - - - -
Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year 490 000 490.00 490 000 490.00

10.1 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Governor of Kerala (Including shares held by nominee

Share holders of GOK) 362600 74.00 362 600 74.00
Kochi Metro Rail Limited (Including shares held by
nominee Share holders of KMRL) 127400 26.00 127400 26.00

10.2 The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.100/- per share. Each shareholder is entitled to receive dividends as declared from time
to time and entitled for one vote per share in the meeting of the Company. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining
assets of the Company in proportion to the number of shares held by them after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any.
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Note 11 : Other Equity

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Add: Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors
Add :Total comprehensive income for the current year
Less : Prior period adjustments to opening balance
Balance as at the end of the year

Other Comprehensive income
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add :Total comprehensive income for the current year
Less : Prior period adjustments to opening balance
Balance as at the end of the year

Total

Note 12 : Other Financial liabilities [Non current]
Security Deposits
Total

Note 13 : Provisions [Non current]
Provision for employee benefits ( Refer Note no.28.2 &28.3)
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment
Total

Note 14 : Deferred Tax Liabilities [Non current]
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred Tax Asset
Unabsorbed Depreciation and Loss

Total

Note 15 : Other Non Current Liabilities
Advance received from Customers

Deferred Fair valuation - Gain -Security Deposit ( Refer Note no.28.9.1)

Total

Note 16 : Trade Payables [Current]
Trade Payables -Others (Refer Note no.28.11)
Trade Payables MSME (Refer Note no.28.11)
Total

Note 17 : Other Financial Liabilities [Current]
Unsecured
Retention(Refer Note no.28.14)
Salary Payable
Others
Total

Note 18 : Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Payments
Advance received from Customers
Deferred Fair valuation Gain -Security Deposit ( Refer Note no.28.9.1)

Total
Note 19 : Provisions [Current]
Provision for Employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for leave encashment
Total
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Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
(33.05) 68.83
(12.14) (101.88)
(45.19) (33.05)
(45.19) (33.05)
Amount (Rs.in lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
9.46 8.92
9.46 8.92
Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
33.04 20.68
19.84 16.02
52.88 36.70
Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
0.00 227
0.46 3.63
0.46 5.90
Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
148.59 74.34
0.45 0.97
149.04 75.31
Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
0.32 0.19
39.72 1.67
1.22 0.56
41.26 242
Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
8.23 9.34
2.10 0.10
3.39 0.92
13.72 10.36
Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
0.05 0.03
4.46 2.58
4.51 2.61




Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)

Revenue from Boat Operations 813.55 413.20
Non fare box revenue 50.65 5.16
Total 864.20 418.36

Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)

Grant from GoK (Refer Note n0.28.13) 505.76 708.74
Interest on bank deposits 1.19 3.34
Other non-operative income (Refer Note No. 21.1) 3.54 2.78
Income from Unwinding of security Deposits (Refer Note No. 28.15) 0.98 0.29
Total 511.47 715.15

Amount (Rs.in lakhs)

21.1 Other Non operating income :

Interest on Security Deposit with KSEB 3.51 271
Other Interest 0.00 0.05
Others 0.03 0.02
Total 3.54 2.78

Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)

Ticketing & Housekeeping Expenses 209.64 173.78
Electricity,Fuel & water Charges 308.86 232.72
Security Expenses 154.68 132.68
Commission 38.40 19.50
Other Operating Expenses 18.41 11.57
Total 729.99 570.25

Amount (Rs.in lakhs)

Salaries and wages 463.03 423.86
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 31.06 45.87
Gratuity Expenses( Refer Note no.28.2 &28.3) 12.37 20.72
Staff welfare expenses 25.31 38.04
Total 531.77 528.49

Amount (Rs.in lakhs)

a) Interest on Fair Valuation of Security Deposit
Unwinding of Interest Expense on Security Deposit (Refer Note No. 28.15) 0.82 0.23
Total 0.82 0.23

Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)

Depreciation on tangible assets 0.47 0.16
Amortisation of intangible asset 0.72 0.13
Total 1.19 0.29
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Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)

Repairs and maintenance 37.18 12.04
Insurance 37.93 20.12
Consultancy and Professional 20.19 10.46
Office and other Miscellaneous expenses 12.15 5.73
Adpvertisement and Promotional Expenses 1.34 5.54
Rent,Rates and taxes 0.83 0.42
License Fee 20.06 9.26
Bank charges 0.03 0.01
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note No.26.1) 1.41 0.93

Total 131.12 64.51

Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)

Audit Fees 1.06 0.58
Other Services 0.35 0.35
1.41 0.93

Amount ( Rs.in lakhs)

Earnings
Net Profit/ ( Loss) after tax (In Rs. Lakhs ) (12.14) (101.88)
Shares
Number of Shares issued & paid-up at the Beginning of the Year 4900 00.00 4900 00.00
Number of Equivalent Shares in respect of Share Application Money Pending
Allotment as at the beginning of the year 0.00 0.00
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year for Basic EPS 490000.00 4900 00.00
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for 4900 00.00 4900 00.00
Diluted EPS
Earnings Per Share
Equity Shares of par value Rs. 100/- each
- Basic (Rs.) (2.48) (20.79)
- Diluted (Rs.) (2.48) (20.79)




NOTE NO. 28 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28.1 Intangible assets under development
All direct expenditure attributable to the formation of intangible asset under development as on

the balance sheet date are recognized under Intangible assets under development.

Intangible assets under development Ageing schedule

Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

Intangible
Assets under Period e Mz & 1-2 years 2-3 years L e Total
year years
development
As at i ) i ) )
31.03.2025
Payroll
. As at
software in 31.03.2024 3.89 - - - 3.89
progress

28.2 Disclosure in respect of IND AS-19, “Employee Benefits”

Provident Fund and pension fund: The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits
under Provident Fund (PF) schemes in which both employees and the Company make monthly
contributions at a specified percentage of the covered Employees’ salary. The contributions are paid to the
Regional Provident Fund Account.

The company’s pension scheme is linked with Provident Fund scheme. All eligible employees of the
company under provident fund schemes are also covered under Employee Pension Scheme (EPS), except
for those employees of the company who became provident fund (PF) member after 1% September 2014
and whose salary is more than Rs.15,000/- per month. Such employees are not liable to be covered under
the EPS scheme. The said benefit is being extended only, if the employee, while joining KWML was an
existing member of PF scheme. Under the above pension scheme, contribution is not collected from the
employees and is paid entirely from the employer’s contribution.

Gratuity: Gratuity is payable as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 to every employee who has rendered
continuous service of five years or more. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by
actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each Balance Sheet date using the projected
unit credit method as required by IND AS 19. Provisions as per actuarial valuations are made in the books
of accounts for the gratuity. As per the actuarial valuation report though planned assets are shown, the
company has not recognized asset in the books, since the company has not created fund trust.

Privileged leave: The Company provides for earned leave benefits to the employees as per the HR policy.
The liability on this account is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Insurance: The Company has also taken Medical Insurance Policy for all its eligible employees during the

current year.
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28.3. The summarized position of various defined benefits recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Balance Sheet as per actuarial

valuation is as under:

Disclosure for defined benefit plans i.e. Gratuity & Earned leave based on actuarial reports as on 31 March 2025

Amount (Rs.in lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity entitlement (Unfunded) Earned Leave Encashment (Unfunded)
As at 31/03/2025 As at 31/03/2024 As at 31/03/2025 As at 31/03/2024

Benefit obligations at the beginning of year 20.72 0.00 18.60 0.00
Current service cost 12.02 20.72 6.65 18.60
Interest Cost 1.50 0.00 0.00 0.00
Benefits paid / provision withdrawn 0.00 0.00 0.95 0.00
Past service cost 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Actuarial (gain) / loss from change in Financial

(1.15) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Assumptions
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations - Due to Experience

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Adjustments & Demographic Assumption
Benefit obligations at the end of year 33.09 20.72 24.30 18.60
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Amount (Rs.in Lakhs)

The amounts for the year ended March 31, 2025 recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under Employee benefit Expense, are as follows:

Particulars

Gratuity entitlement (Unfunded)

Earned Leave Encashment Unfunded)

As at 31/03/2025 As at 31/03/2024 As at 31/03/2025 As at 31/03/2024

Current service cost 12.02 20.72 6.65 9.31
Interest cost 1.50 0.00 0.00 0.00
Past service cost 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Reimbursement Service cost 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Remeasurement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 13.52 20.72 6.65 9.31
Less: Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss transferred to CWIP/Project

(1.15) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund/Others
Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss 12.37 20.72 6.65 9.31
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The principal assumptions used to determine Gratuity and Earned leave encashment benefit

obligations as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Particulars As at 31/03/2025 As at 31/03/2024
Discount rate 6.88% 7.23%
Salary escalation rate - First 5 Years 8.00% 8.00%

Amount (Rs.in Lakhs)

Net Asset / Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet

Gratuity

Leave Encashment (Unfunded)

Particulars entitlement (Unfunded)
As at As at As at
As at 31/03/2024
31/03/2025 31/03/2025 31/03/2024

Present value of the
obligation 33.09 20.72 24.30 18.60
Fair value of plan assets - - - -
Difference 33.09 20.72 24.30 18.60
Unrecognised transitional - -
liability - -
Unrecognised past service - -
cost - non vested benefits - -
Liability recognized in the
balance sheet 33.09 20.72 24.30 18.60
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28.4 Disclosure as per IND AS - 33 “Earnings per Share
Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Net Profit /(Loss) for the year (Rs. in Lakhs) -12.14 -101.88

Weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year

- Basic 4,90,000 4,90,000
- Diluted 4,90,000 4,90,000
Basic Earnings Per Share (Face value of Rs. 100/-per -2.48 -20.79
share) (Rs.)
Dilutive Earnings Per Share (Face value of Rs. 100/- -2.48 -20.79

per share) (Rs)

28.5 Disclosure in respect of IND AS-1, “Presentation of financial statements”, IND AS 8,” Accounting
policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

a. Capital Management
Amount (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31% March 2025 As at 31% March 2024
(a) Total Debt - -
(b) Total Capital 444.81 456.95

(c ) Debt/ Equity ratio (a/b)

For the purpose of computation of company’s capital management, capital includes Issued Capital and Other

Equity. Company has not availed any debt.

28.6 Disclosure as per IND AS - 24 “Related Party Disclosure”

A. Key Management persons:

No. | Name of Director Designation Effective from
Chairman & Nominee
1 Dr.Venu V. (till 31.08.2024)
Director - GoK
(w.e.f. 03.04.2024 as
Nominee Director and
Chairperson & Nominee
2 Smt. Sarada Muraleedharan from 11.09.2024 as
Director - GoK
Chairperson & Nominee
Director)
3 Shri Puneet Kumar Nominee Director - GoK (till 03.04.2024)
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4 Shri Rabindra Kumar Agarwal Nominee Director - GoK (till 11.09. 2024)
5 Dr. A. Jayathilak Nominee Director - GoK (w.e.f. 11.09. 2024)
(w.e.f.08.11.2024
6 Dr. Rathan U. Kelkar Nominee Director - GoK
till 07.01.2025)
7 Shri Biju Prabhakar Nominee Director - GoK (w.e.f. 10.10.2022)
8 Shri Loknath Behera Managing Director (w.e.f. 17.11.2021)
9 Shri Umesh N.S.K. Nominee Director - GoK (w.e.f. 03.05.2023)
10 | Smt. Annapoorani S. Nominee Director - KMRL (till 30.09.2024)
11 | Dr. M. P. Ramnavas Nominee Director - KMRL (w.e.f. 27.07.2023)

B. Particulars of companies where significant influence exists and with whom the company had transactions.

Kochi Metro Rail Limited

Kochi Water Metro Limited is an Associate company of Kochi Metro Rail Limited which holds 26% equity share

capital of the company. The company has entered into an agreement with Kochi Metro Rail Limited (KMRL) for

licensing of space for a period of 5 years from 09-08-2021.

The company has also entered an agreement with Kochi Metro Rail Ltd on 04.09.2023 for handholding the

company through initial phase of operations.

The following transactions were carried out with Kochi Metro Rail Limited in the ordinary course of business

during the year:

Amount (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Receipt of funds received by KMRL on behalf of KWML 228.85 306.99
Reimbursement of Expenses to KMRL 2.94 37.44
Services received 1.32 0.81
KWML Revenue from Period Pass issued from KMRL Stations 20.42 0.03
KMRL Revenue from Period Pass issued from KWML Terminals 0.00 0.09

The following are the Outstanding balances with Kochi Metro Rail Limited as on 31 March 2025.
Amount (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Payable to KMRL against reimbursement of expenses 3.45 7.18
Payable to Service received 1.55 0.00
Receivable- Receipts at KMRL on behalf of KWML 0.10 2.29
Receivable- Revenue from Period Pass issued from KMRL Stations 1.33 0.00

*All outstanding balances are unsecured and are payable in cash.
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28.7 Disclosure in respect to IND AS-12 “Income Taxes”

The Company has deferred tax asset of Rs. 19.52 lakh as on 31.03.2025 (Rs.10.89 lakhs on 31.03.2024). The
deferred tax liability as on 31.03.2025 is Rs.0.12 lakhs (Rs.0.06 lakhs as on 31.03.2024). The net deferred tax
asset as on 31.03.2025 is Rs.19.40 lakhs (Rs.10.83 lakhs as on 31.03.2024) and has been recognized pursuant to
provisions of IND AS - 12.

Tax Deducted at Source has been recognised in financial statements based on 26 AS, as appearing in the CBDT
portal of the Income Tax Department, Government of India, as on 20.05.2025 in respect of the Financial Year

2024-25.

28.8 Disclosure in respect of IND AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Assets & Contingent Liabilities

Opening balance as Additions/ transfer Closing balance
Particulars
on 01.04.2024 /utilization during the year | as on 31.03.2025
Provisions 29.97 27.70 57.67

The company is not having any Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets as at balance sheet date.

28.9 Disclosure in respect of Ind AS — 107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
28.9.1 Financial Instruments by categories

Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 31t March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Amortized Amortized
FVTPL FVOCI FVTPL FVOCI
cost cost

Financial Assets
Other financial
assets (refer note 503.79 - - 460.20 - -
no. 4 & 8)
Trade receivables

4.64 - - 2.08 - -
(refer note no. 6)
Total 508.43 - - 462.28 - -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 0.00 - - 0.00 - -
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Other financial
liabilities (refer
203.61 - - 91.20 - -
note no.
12,15,16,17 & 18)
Total 203.61 - - 91.20 - -

28.9.2 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are impaired when recoverability is considered doubtful based on the recovery analysis
performed by the company for individual trade receivables. The company considers that all the above
financial assets that are not impaired and past due for each reporting dates under review are of good credit

quality.
Age analysis of trade receivables at each of the reporting date is summarized as follows:

Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment Total
Less than 6 | 6 months 1-2 2-3 More than
months -1 year years | years 3 years
Particulars
As at 31% 4.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 4.64
Undisputed Trade March 2025
receivables —
. As at 31% 2.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 2.08
considered good
March 2024
Undisputed Trade | As at 31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 0.00
Receivables — which March 2025
have significant
. . - As at 31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 0.00
increase in credit risk
March 2024
As at 31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 0.00
Undisputed Trade
Receivables — credit March 2025
impaired As at 31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 0.00
March 2024
As at 31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 0.00
March 2025
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Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment Total
Less than 6 | 6 months 1-2 2-3 More than
months -1 year years | years 3 years
Particulars
Disputed Trade | As at 31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 0.00
receivables — March 2024
considered good
Disputed Trade | As at 31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 0.00
Receivables — which | March 2025
have significant "a™ ot 31 0.00 0.00| 000] 0.0 0.00| 0.00
increase in credit risk March 2024
As at 31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 0.00
Disputed Trade
Receivables — credit | March 2025
impaired As at 31° 0.00 000 000| 0.0 0.00| 0.00
March 2024
Total As at 31 4.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 4.64
March 2025
As at 31 2.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 2.08
March 2024

28.10 Disclosure in respect of IND AS -108 “Operating Segments”
The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is Operation & Maintenance of the Integrated
Water Metro system (water metro) in the city of Kochi. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial

statements are related to the Company's single business segment.

28.11 Amount payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
As at March 31, 2025, an amount of Rs.0.45 lakhs (previous year Rs.0.97 lakhs) is outstanding but not due to

micro, small and medium enterprises. There are no interests due or outstanding on the same.
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Amount Payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Amount (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
The Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any NIL NIL
supplier as at end of each accounting year.
Principal amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises. NIL NIL
Interest due on above. NIL NIL
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the NIL NIL
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making NIL NIL
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act
2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each NIL NIL
accounting year.
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the NIL NIL
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.
Total NIL NIL

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent

such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

Amount (Rs. in lakhs)

Less than One More than
Particulars Period year * 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total
As at
31.03.2025 0.45 NIL NIL NIL 0.45
MSME As at
31.03.2024 0.97 NIL NIL NIL 0.97
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Others As at
31.03.2025 90.92 NIL NIL NIL 90.92
As at
31.03.2024 44.37 NIL NIL NIL 44.37
Disputed dues As at
-MSME 31.03.2025 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
As at
31.03.2024 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Disputed dues As at
—Others 31.03.2025 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
As at
31.03.2024 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Unbilled dues
Amount (Rs. in lakhs)
More
Particulars Period (AL OO 1-2 years 2-3 years than 3 Total
year/Not due
years
As at
31.03.2025 57.67 NIL NIL NIL 57.67
As at
Unbilled dues 31.03.2024 29.97 NIL NIL NIL 29.97
28.12 Ratio Analysis
The ratios for the years ended March 31, 2025 are as follows:
SI- Particulars Numerator Denominator As at 31* As at 31% Variance
No. March 2025 March 2024 (in %)
1 | Current Ratio Current assets C.ur.rt.er?t 3.17 6.10 -48%
liabilities
. Average
2 E::;m on Equity Net profit shareholder (0.03) (0.20) 87%
equity
Trade Receivables Average trade .
3 Turnover ratio Revenue receivable 15.08 4.97 204%
Purchases of
4 Trade payab.les services and Average trade | 7.68 9.81 (22%)
turnover ratio
other expenses | payables
5 | Netcapital Revenue Working 3.05 2.45 24%
turnover ratio Capital
6 | Net profit ratio Net profit Revenue (0.88) (8.99) 90%
7 (0.04) (0.06) 39%
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Earnings before
interest and
taxes

Return on Capital
employed

Capital
employed

Reason for Variance

. Due to reduction in operating loss

. Due to reduction in operating loss

N ok 0N e

. Due to increase in alternative revenue sources

. Due to increase in fare box and non fare box revenue

. Due to increase in liability on account of resumption of funds from treasury

. Due to increase in current liability on account of resumption of funds from treasury

. Due to reduction in provision for actuarial valuation of employee benefits

Other ratios required by Division Il of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable on the

Company, as there are no transactions related to these ratios

28.13 Government Grant

As per clause 5.15 of MOU between Government of Kerala (GoK) and Kochi Metro Rail Ltd dated

01.06.2021, GoK shall provide Viability Gap Funding which shall include payment of all losses of KWML and

shall provide interest free funding for expansions, capital expenditure, replacements, unplanned

repairs/maintenance, viability gap working capital and all

Agreement.

other matters as covered in the O&M

Further, as per the draft 0&M Agreement with GokK, duly approved by the Board, the yearly operations and

maintenance expenses of the project shall be paid by GoK in advance on or before the first day of the

financial year during the term of this agreement as per the annual expenses budgeted.

Accordingly, the company has received Rs.465.10 lakhs during the year (previous year 594 lakhs) as per the

details given below.

G.0. No. Date Amount (Rs.in Lakhs)
GO(Rt)N0.179/2024/TRANS 17.05.2024 25.00
GO(Rt)N0.249/2024/TRANS 06.07.2024 200.00
GO(Rt)N0.422/2024/TRANS 22.10.2024 200.00
GO(Rt)N0.144/2025/TRANS 24.03.2025 300.00
Less: Resumed on 31.03.2025 (259.90)

Total Grant Received 465.10
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Government grant due as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred is recognised as receivable

from GoK as per IND AS 20. Accordingly, an amount of Rs.470.04 lakhs (previous year Rs.429.38 lakhs) is

shown as Government Grant receivable as on 31 March 2025 as worked out below.

Amount (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Grant Receivable (Opening) 429.38 314.64
Add: Grant Receivable during the year 505.76 708.74
Less: Grant Received during the year (465.10) (594.00)
Grand Receivable (Closing) 470.04 429.38

An amount of Rs.505.76 lakhs (Viability Gap Funding) is recognised as revenue grant and shown under Other

Income in the Statement of Profit & Loss during the year.

28.14 Retention
Retention amount of Rs. 0.32 lakhs during the year (previous year -Rs.0.19 lakhs) represents the amount
retained from Suppliers / Contractors for successful completion of the contract / security for warranty. This

will be refunded on successful completion of contract / expiry of the warranty period.

28.15 Unwinding of Security Deposit

Unwinding of Security Deposit is worked out @ 9.37% during the year as per current market rate (previous
year -8.82%).

28.16 Security Deposit - KSEB

Security deposit remitted to KSEB for obtaining electricity connection is Rs.60.31 lakhs, out of which Rs.30.30
lakhs is remitted by KMRL on behalf of Government of Kerala as initial setting up expenditure as part of

project cost.

28.17 Additional information

The commercial operations of Integrated water metro system commenced from 26th April 2023. Clause 4.2
of the Memorandum of Understanding dated 01.06.2021 between Government of Kerala (GoK) and Kochi
Metro Rail Ltd states that GoK shall delegate to KWML the overall responsibility and authority for operating,
maintaining and managing the water metro transport system and permit KWML to use the assets of Water
Metro Project to ensure that the system is available to meet the requirements of a passenger ferry system in
Kochi. The Operation and Maintenance agreement between the company and GoK is under consideration of
GoK. As per the draft O& M agreement, GoK, being the dejure owner of the Integrated water metro assets,

shall delegate the overall responsibility and authority for operating, maintaining and managing the water
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metro system to the company. This arrangement does not fall under the preview of IND AS 116 (Leases).

Accordingly, there is no obligation on to the company to recognise any right of use of assets in the company’s

books of account.

28.18 Recent accounting pronouncements.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards

under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March

31,2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating

to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company has reviewed

the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant

impact in its financial statements.

28.19 Additional Regulatory Information

i)

iii)

The Company has complied with the requirements of the number of layers prescribed under clause

(87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)

Rules, 2017.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),

including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities

(funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company

shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

No transactions to report against the following disclosure requirements as notified by MCA
pursuant to amended Schedule IlI:

(a) Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
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(b) Transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or

Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

(c) Benami Property held under Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules

made thereunder.

(d) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

(e) Relating to borrowed funds:
i. Wilful defaulter

ii. Utilization of borrowed funds & share premium

iii. Borrowings obtained on the basis of security of current assets

iv. Discrepancy in utilization of borrowings

v. Current maturity of long-term borrowings

28.20 Previous Year figures have been regrouped /re-arranged/reclassified, wherever necessary, to make them

comparable to the current year’s presentation.

In terms of our report of even date attached.

For Saju & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 003526S
UDIN: 25229234BMIMDO04265

Sd/- Sd/-
Jayson Jacob Mathew Loknath Behera
Partner Managing Director
Membership No: 229234 (DIN:09406020)
Place: Kochi

Date: 30.06.2025
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Dr. M. P. Ramnavas
Director
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Place: Kochi
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OFFICE OF THE ACCOU TA T GE ERAL (AUDIT ) KERALA,
TINRUVA A THAP RAM

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLFER A D AUDITOR GE  FRAL OF IT DIA DIFR
SECTIO 143 (6)(b) OF TIHE COMPA TES ACT, 2013 O THE FI A CIAL
STATEMENTS OF KOCHI WATER METRO LIMITED FOR THIT YEAR F DED 31
MARCH 2025

The preparation ol tinancial statements of Kochi Water Metro Limited for the vear ended 31
March 2025 in accordance with the financial reporting framework pre eribed under the
Companics Act. 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory
auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Scction 139(3) of the
Act arc responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under “cction 143 of the
Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing pre cribed under
Scction 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 30 June 2025.

1. on behalt of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. have decided not to conduct the
supplementary audit of the financial statements of” Kochi Water Metro Limited for the vear
ended 31 March 2025 under Scction 143(6)(a) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Thiruvananthapuram UKANTIH P. B.
Dated: 18-08-2025 T GE ERAL (AUDIT-II),
KERALA
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Fort Kochi terminal opening to public

21t April 2024

Water Metro project review by KFW delegation

07* Oct 2024
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